
CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 

 

AGENDA 

May 16th, 2022 7:30 p.m.                        Electronic 

  

 

 

1. OPEN 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA         

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST        

 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  

a) May 3, 2022 Regular 

Council Meeting Minutes 

b) May 10, 2022 Special 

Council Meeting Minutes 

5. DELEGATIONS  

a) Corey Houle of Freelandt, 

Caldwell, Reilly    

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

a) 2021 Audited Financial 

Statements 

b) 2021-31 Exotic Pets By-

Law 

c) Parks, Recreation and 

Wellness Committee 

Member Application 

d) 2022-23 Amend Zoning 

By-Law 1980-11 

9.  CORRESPONDENCE 

 

10. INFORMATION 

a) Manitoulin Planning 

Board 2021 Financial 

Statements 

b) Manitoulin Planning 

Board Final Requisition 

for Funding for 2022 



c) Regulation Changes 

Under the Aggregate 

Resources Act 

d) Billings Museum 

Committee Meeting 

Minutes – May 2, 2022 

e) Climate Action 

Committee Minutes 

March 23, 2022 

f) Climate Action 

Committee Minutes April 

6, 2022 

g) Economic Development 

Committee Minutes 

March 9, 2022 

h) Economic Development 

Committee Minutes April 

13, 2022 

11. ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT 

 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

 

13. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT    



 

 

Memorandum 
To:   Mayor, Council  

cc:    Staff, Public 

From:  Staff 

Date:   May 12 th, 2022 
 

RE:   May 16 th, 2022 Council Meeting 

 

4. Minutes 

 

a) May 3, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 

 

Please review the minutes for approval. 

 

b) May 10, Special Council Meeting Minutes 

 

Please review the minutes for approval. 

 

5. Delegations 

 

a) Corey Houle of Freelandt, Caldwell, Reilly 

 

Corey Houle of Freelandt, Caldwell, Reilly, will be presenting the 2021 Financial Statement as he 

does every year once the 2021 Financial Audits have been completed. 

 

6. Committee Reports 

 

None. 

 

7. Old Business 

 

None. 

 

8. New Business 

 

a) 2021 Audited Financial Statements 

 

Recommendation: 

That Council accepts the 2021 Audited Financial Statements as presented by Corey Houle. 

 

b) 2021-31 Exotic Pets By-Law 

 

Recommendation: 

There are a few options Council should consider when discussing this topic, as detailed in the memo, 

staff awaits direction on this matter. 

 

Memo written by Arthur Moran, By-Law Enforcement Officer: 

Dear Council, 

 

In response to local concerns that have been raised lately regarding a bylaw exemption request to 

raise back yard chickens and the community response resulting from a bylaw complaint follow-up 

that I performed, and a current Township bylaw, Domestic and Exotic Pets # 2021-31, I felt that there 



 

 

may be a need to revisit provision 3.1.3 of this Bylaw. This is the provision that states that Domestic 

Fowl can be raised in the Township, but only on properties that are designated as Rural or Agricultural 

under the current zoning bylaw.  

I believe that to move forward on this topic the Township Council has three options: 

1. Keep the current by-law as is 

2. Amend the current bylaw to allow the raising of backyard chickens 

3. Develop a new bylaw that deals specifically with the raising of backyard chickens.  

A couple of items that also need to be reviewed before going forward are, provision 6.3 (d) of the 

Township Zoning bylaw 1980 – 11 which states that accessory buildings shall not be used for the 

keeping of animals other than domestic pets. Also, sections 7.3 though 7.6 (Hamlet, Hamlet 

Residential, Shoreline Residential, Mobile Home Park) of the Zoning bylaws, does not identify any 

structures for raising domestic animals as being allowed. 

To assist Council with this decision, I have checked with other Island municipalities to find out if they 

allow backyard chickens, as well as reviewing the bylaws from other communities in Ontario and in 

other locations in Canada. I have also researched raising backyard chickens’ information from 

agricultural web sites. 

Currently on Manitoulin Island, the following municipalities do not have bylaws allowing back yard 

chickens: Little Current, Mindemoya, Providence Bay, Spring Bay, Gore Bay, Tehkummah and South 

Baymouth. 

Listed below are recognized positives and negatives of raising backyard chickens: 

Positive Negative 

-Food sustainability 

-Economic savings 

-Mental wellness/personal satisfaction 

-Exercise 

 

 

-Poultry can be a source of disease, some that 

can be transmitted to humans. 

-Poultry can attract predatory animals such as 

coyotes, rats, skunks, raccoons, foxes and other 

neighbourhood pets. 

-Dead stock removal 

-Aroma from feces 

-Noise 

 

If there is a decision to allow a bylaw for the raising of backyard chickens, provisions in the bylaw 

would need to include, property size, coop size, run area size, setbacks from fence lines and water 

sources, storage of feces, neighbour approval, permits and training requirements. 

As you can see, there are many considerations to be taken into account when examining requests to 

amend or adopt a bylaw that deals with raising backyard chickens. 

I await any direction regarding this matter. 

Regards, 

Arthur Moran 

Bylaw Enforcement Officer 

 

c) Parks, Recreation and Wellness Committee Member Application 

 

Recommendation: 

That Council approves Meg Middleton’s application to join the Parks, Recreation and Wellness 

Committee. 



 

 

 

The Parks, Recreation and Wellness Committee will have a total of 6 members if Meg Middleton’s 

application is accepted. 

 

d) 2022-23 Amend Zoning By-Law 1980-11 

 

Recommendation: 

That Council accept By-Law 2022-23, being a By-Law to amend zoning by-law 1980-11, as presented. 

 

This By-Law was drafted by the Manitoulin Planning Board in regards to the Consent to Sever, File 

No’s B30-21 to B33-21.  

 

9. Correspondence  

 

None. 

 

10. Information 

 

There are a number of items attached for Council’s information. Council may move any of these items to new 

business during the agenda approval for discussion at this meeting, or request that an item(s) be included on 

a future agenda for discussion. 

a) Manitoulin Planning Board 2021 Financial Statements 

b) Manitoulin Planning Board Final Requisition for Funding for 2022 

c) Regulation Changes Under the Aggregate Resources Act 

d) Billings Museum Committee Meeting Minutes – May 2, 2022 

e) Climate Action Committee Minutes March 23, 2022 

f) Climate Action Committee Minutes April 6, 2022 

g) Economic Development Committee Minutes March 9, 2022 

h) Economic Development Committee Minutes April 13, 2022 

 

12. Closed Session 

None. 



The Corporation of the 

Township of Billings 

Regular Council Meeting 

 

May 3rd, 2022 7:30 p.m.            Electronic Meeting    

 

 

Present: Deputy Mayor Bryan Barker, Councillors Sharon Alkenbrack, Michael Hunt 

and Sharon Jackson 

Regrets: Mayor Ian Anderson 

Staff: Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk; Tiana Mills, Deputy Clerk; Todd Gordon, MPM; 

Arthur Moran, By Law Officer; Cheryl McCulligh, Treasurer 

Media: Tom Sasvari 

Members of the General Public 

 

 

1. OPEN 

 2022-135 Hunt - Alkenbrack 

BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of Council be opened with a 

quorum present at 7:30 p.m. with Deputy Mayor Barker presiding. 

Carried 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA    

2022-136 Alkenbrack - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the May 3rd, 2022 regular meeting of 

Council be accepted as presented. 

      Carried 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

None. 

 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES   

a) April 19th, 2022 Public Meeting Minutes 

2022-137 Alkenbrack - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes for the April 19th, 2022 public meeting 

of Council be accepted as presented. 

      Carried 

 

b) April 19th, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 

2022-138 Jackson - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes for the April 19th, 2022 regular meeting 

of Council be accepted as presented. 

      Carried 

 

c) April 26th, 2022 Special Council Meeting Minutes 

2022-139 Alkenbrack - Jackson 



BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes for the April 26th, 2022 special meeting 

of Council be accepted as presented. 

      Carried 

 

5. DELEGATIONS 

 None.   

 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a) Economic Development Committee Report – March 9th, 2022 

Council received report. 

 

b) Economic Development Committee Report – April 13th, 2022 

Council received report. 

  

7. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

          

8. NEW BUSINESS 

a) Citizen of the Year Award 

2022-140 Jackson - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council directs staff to issue a call for nominations 

for the 2022 Citizens of the Year in Billings Township. 

Carried 

 

b) Interview Committee for the CAO/Clerk Position 

2022-141 Alkenbrack - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council appoints the following to the CAO/Clerk 

interview committee: Mayor Ian Anderson, CAO/Clerk Kathy McDonald, 

Councillor Bryan Barker and Councillor Sharon Alkenbrack.                                

      Carried 

 

c) World Ocean’s Day 2022 

2022-142 Hunt - Jackson 

WHEREAS, Wednesday, June 8, 2022, is the 30th annual World Ocean’s 

Day. World Oceans Day is the United Nations Day for celebrating the role of 

the ocean in everyday life and inspiring action to protect it. 

 

WHEREAS, Countries around the world, including Canada as a prominent 

leader, have committed to protecting 30% of their ocean territory by 2030 in 

order to reverse nature loss in the ocean and safeguard at-risk marine life. 

 

WHEREAS, the ocean is home to hundreds of species at risk, vulnerable 

ecosystems, and is a crucial carbon sink shielding us from the worst of climate 

change. 

 



WHEREAS, the ocean produces over half of the world’s oxygen and absorbs 

50 times more carbon dioxide than our atmosphere. Therefore, protecting the 

ocean is in the interest of all life on Earth, and communities both coastal and 

inland, as it is essential to our shared future. 

 

WHEREAS, it is the jurisdiction of the Government of Canada, under various 

pieces of legislation and regulation, to establish marine protected areas in 

consultation with Indigenous Peoples. Many Indigenous nations and 

communities are leading in the conservation of the ocean, and have been 

stewards of the ocean since time immemorial. 

 

WHEREAS, it is important for municipal leaders to demonstrate support for 

actions to safeguard the ocean, as they have for action on climate change and 

other environmental matters of national importance. 

 

WHEREAS, in celebrating the ocean, and protecting its habitats and 

ecosystems, we can together raise the profile of ocean conservation’s critical 

role in improving planetary health and slowing the crisis of species collapse 

and ecosystem decline. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Billings 

recognizes the 30th anniversary of World Oceans Day on June 8th, 2022 and 

supports national and international efforts to protect 30% of the ocean by 

2030. 

       Carried 

 

9. CORRESPONDANCE 

 None. 

 

10. INFORMATION 

a) Firefighter Certification 

Council received report. 

 

b) 2021 Municipal Property Assessment Corporation Financial Statements  

Council received report. 

 

c) ICIP Green Funding: Old Mill Water Line Replacement Project 

Council received report. 

 

d) Kagawong Angling Platform 

Council received report. 

 

11. ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT 

2022-143 Hunt - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the following accounts for payment: 

  



General Accounts  $9,275.01 

and that cheques numbered 7239 to 7251 be authorized for signing as described in 

the attached register. 

      Carried 

 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

 2022-144 Alkenbrack - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal 

Act, 2001 S.O. Chapter 25, this Council proceed to a Closed Session at 7:57 p.m. 

in order to discuss an item involving an identifiable individual, including 

municipal or local board employees 

                 Carried 

… 

 

2022- 146 Alkenbrack - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council moves out of the Closed Session at 8:08p.m. 

and resume their regular, open meeting. 

                  Carried 

  

13. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 

2022-147 Alkenbrack - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that By-law 2022-22, being a by-law to confirm the 

proceedings of Council be given first, second, third reading and enacted. 

       Carried 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

 2022-148 Hunt - Alkenbrack 

BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of Council be adjourned at 8:10 

p.m.    

Carried 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________       _________________________________ 

Bryan Barker, Deputy Mayor    Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk 



The Corporation of the 

Township of Billings 

Special Council Meeting 

 

May 10th, 2022 6:00 p.m.            Electronic Meeting    

 

Present: Mayor Anderson, Councillors, Bryan Barker, Michael Hunt, Sharon Alkenbrack 

and Sharon Jackson 

Staff: Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk; Tiana Mills, Deputy Clerk; Todd Gordon, MPM; 

Cheryl McCulligh, Treasurer 

Regrets: None. 

Media: Tom Sasvari 

Members of the General Public 

 

1. OPEN 

 2022-149 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that this special meeting of Council be opened with a 

quorum present at 6:00 p.m. with Mayor Anderson presiding. 

Carried 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA    

 2022-150 Jackson - Barker 

BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the May 10th, 2022 special meeting of 

Council be accepted as presented.   

Carried 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

None. 

 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES   

 None.         

 

5. DELEGATIONS 

 None 

       

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 None. 

        

7. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

                

8. NEW BUSINESS 

a) 2022-24 Outdoor Rink Cover Supply and Installation 

2022-151 Barker - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council give By-Law 2022-24, being a By-Law to 

enter into a contract with Calhoun Super Structure for the supply and 



installation of a soft-cover structure over the Kagawong Outdoor Rink, first, 

second, third reading and enacted.      

Carried 

 

9.  CORRESPONDENCE 

 None. 

 

10. INFORMATION 

 None. 

 

11. ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT 

 None. 

 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

 None. 

 

13. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 

2022-152 Alkenbrack - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that By-law 2022-25, being a by-law to confirm the 

proceedings of Council be given first, second, third reading and enacted. 

      Carried 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

 2022-153 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that this special meeting of Council be adjourned at 6:22 

p.m.    

Carried 

  

   

 

 

_________________________________       _________________________________ 

Ian Anderson, Mayor     Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk 





















































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject: Decision Notice - Proposed Regulation Changes under the Aggregate Resources Act 
 
Greetings, 
 
Further to my letter dated January 11th, I am writing to inform you that a decision notice has 
been posted regarding the Proposed regulatory changes for the beneficial reuse of excess soil 
at pits and quarries in Ontario (ERO #019-4801).  The Ministry of Northern Development, 
Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry made changes so that requirements in Ontario 
Regulation 244/97 under the Aggregate Resources Act are consistent with provincial 
requirements that exist under the Environmental Protection Act for excess soil. The proposal 
was posted for 45 days and during that time we received over 390 comments from key 
stakeholders including industry, municipalities, Indigenous communities, community groups 
and individuals. Most comments received were supportive of consistency with the Rules for Soil 
Management and Excess Soil Quality Standards referenced in the On-site and Excess Soil 
Management Regulation under the Environmental Protection Act. 
 
The amendments to Ontario Regulation 244/97, which take effect July 1, 2022, include: 
 

• Alignment with the Soil Rules and Excess Soil Standards referenced in Ontario 
Regulation 406/19 On-site and Excess Soil Management 

• Requirements for importation, storage, and placement of excess soil 

• Specific quality standards for excess soil placed below the water table, or on Crown land 

• Record-keeping requirements to document soil quality, quantity, source site(s), and final 
placement 

• Requirements for licensees and permittees to retain a Qualified Person (i.e., 
professional engineer or geoscientist) for large sites that import more than 10,000 m3 of 
excess soil, or sites where excess soil will be placed below the water table 

• Self-filing – for licences/permits approved before July 1, 2022, rules have been added 
that, when followed, enable some conditions to be removed from a site plan when filed 
with the ministry; and 

• Other policy changes to support the beneficial reuse of excess soil at pits and quarries in 
Ontario 

 

 
 
 
 
Ministry of Northern Development, 
Mines, Natural Resources and 
Forestry 
 
Resources Planning and Development 
Policy Branch 
Policy Division 
300 Water Street 
Peterborough, ON K9J 3C7 
 

 
 
 
 
Ministère du Développement du Nord, 
des Mines, des Richesses Naturelles et 
des Forêts 
 
Direction des politiques de planification et 
d'exploitation des ressources 
Division de l’élaboration des politiques 
300, rue Water  
Peterborough (Ontario) K9J 3C7 
 

https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-4801
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/970244
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/970244
https://files.ontario.ca/mecp-soil-rules-en-2020-12-21.pdf
https://files.ontario.ca/mecp-soil-rules-en-2020-12-21.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r19406
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r19406


For complete details of these changes please refer to the decision notice posted on the 
Environmental Registry at the following address: www.ero.ontario.ca; then search for notice: 
019-4801. 
 
If you have any questions about the new requirements, or should you require a French version 
of this letter, please contact us by email at aggregates@ontario.ca. 
 
Sincerely 

 
Jennifer Keyes, 
Director, Resources Planning and Development Policy Branch 

 

http://www.ero.ontario.ca/
mailto:aggregates@ontario.ca


Billings Museum Committee 
Minutes 

 
 
May 2, 2022       Electronic 
 
Present: Deb Flaxman, Dianne Fraser, Michael Hunt (Chair), Diane Larocque, Brad MacKay, Kathy 
McDonald (staff), Rick Nelson (staff). 
Regrets: Barb Edwards 
 

1. Opening 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Michael Hunt 

 
 

2. Approval of the Agenda 
Motion by Brad MacKay, seconded by Deb Flaxman 
That the May 2nd agenda be accepted as presented. 
 Carried 

 
3. Pecuniary Interest 

None 
 

4. Adoption of the Minutes -April 4, 2022 
Motion by Dianne Fraser, seconded by Diane Larocque 
That the minutes of the April 4, 2022, meeting be accepted as presented. 
 Carried 

 
5. Financial Report 

Motion by Deb Flaxman, seconded by Dianne Fraser 
That the financial report be accepted as presented. 
 Carried 

 
6. Old Business 

• Museum Opening 
The Heritage Centre will be open May 21, 22, 28 and 29 from 10 a.m. to 5 p.m., from 
June 4 to the end of August the Heritage Centre will be open seven days a week from 10 
a.m. to 5 p.m. Signage will be installed stating masks are recommended.  
 

• Store 
Deb has ordered four boxes of hawberry jelly at $48 + hst per box.  

 

• Exhibits 
There are only a few items to add. This was discussed in the last meeting. 
 

• Signs 
The sign outside the museum has been repaired by Public Works and is now better 
secured. The vinyl sign that goes up at the top of the hill is at Public Works. Brad and 
Rick need to get the sign and install it. 



The signage from Laird Signs is in the Post Office Museum and is ready to be installed. 
 

• Donor Wall 
Brad has completed putting up the new lighthouse picture for the donor wall and has 
changed the lighting to reduce glare. 
 

• History Day 
History Day will be August 11, 2022, with two showings, one at 3:30 and one at 7:30 
p.m. There has been a change to one of the presenters. Guy will not be attending but in 
his place will be David St. Pierre. Everything is good to go with the Salvation Army. Brad 
has suggested that a second small stage be set up off to the side of the Main Stage for 
the Salvation Army Band. 

 

• Jabbawong Story Telling Festival 
The date of the event has been changed to July 9th and will be held at the Park Centre. 
Discussion on having a BBQ on that date and location, as what happens if it rains that day. 
Also unknown is if venders will be participating. Rick to contact Sharon Alkenbrack 
regarding details. 
 

• Old Mill Outside Artifacts 
The old artifacts that are in front of the flywheel will be relocated to the Mariners Park. 
Brad has suggested that gravel be put down north of the museum to level the area and 
dress it up. Brad will organize this. 
 
Motion by Brad MacKay, seconded by Diane Larocque 
That a budget of $2000 be set for installation of the gravel behind the museum.  
  Carried 
  

7. New Business 
None  

 
 

8. Council Updates 
Michael Hunt presented an update on Council. 

 
9. Next Meeting 

June 6, 2022 
 

10. Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:46 p.m. on a motion by Brad MacKay. 



 

 

TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 
MINUTES 

Climate Action Committee (CAC) 
 

March 23, 2022                                                                                                Virtual Meeting – Zoom@7pm 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Ian Anderson, Councillor Bryan Barker (Chair), Bob Clifford, John Hoekstra, Chris 
Theijsmeijer  
REGRETS: Paul Darlaston. 
Staff: Todd Gordon (MPM, Recorder) 
Members of the Public: None 
Media: None 
 

1) OPEN 

The meeting was called to order at 7:04 pm. 
Moved by Chris Theijsmeijer; Seconded by Bob Clifford. Carried. 

 

2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

The agenda for the March 23rd, 2022, meeting was approved, as amended – CAC Blog was added 
as Old Business, item iii). 

Moved by Ian Anderson; Seconded by Bob Clifford. Carried. 
 

3) DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

None. 
 

4) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

The minutes for the March 8th, 2022, meeting were approved. 
Moved by Chris Theijsmeijer; Seconded by John Hoekstra. Carried. 

 

5) DELEGATIONS 

None. 
 

6) OLD BUSINESS 
 

i. Spring (Earth Day) Event – Planning and Organizing 

The Chair confirmed that the even had been approved by Council at the March 21st regular 
meeting. There was extensive roundtable discussion on follow-up by committee members on 
topics and possible speakers. The result was further development of the program, but only 
one confirmed speaker – Liam Campbell from Manitoulin Streams. However, there are more 
than enough topics and still a number of potential speakers. The committee felt with ongoing 
follow-up and one more planning session, a reasonable program will be developed. 

ii. CAC Budget 
 

The committee discussed expected expenditures for committee operations for 2022. 



 

2 
 

Recommendation: 
That Council allocate $1000.00 for Climate Action Committee business for the 2022 
budget year. 
Motion by Bob Clifford Paul Darlaston; Seconded by Chris Theijsmeijer. Carried. 
 

iii. CAC Blog 

The committee briefly discussed blog development. Chris Theijsmeijer had created advanced 
drafts of two initial blog posts for committee review. 

Recommendation:  
That Council approve an ongoing Climate Action Committee blog for communicating 
climate action and related information to the community, and monitored by the Climate 
Change Implementation Coordinator or other designated staff. 
Motion by Chris Theijsmeijer; Seconded by Bob Clifford. Carried. 

 

7) NEW BUSINESS 

None 
 

8) CORRESPONDENCE 
 

None 
 

9) INFORMATION 
 

None 
 

10) CLOSED SESSION 
 

None 
 

11) RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

1. That Council allocate $1000.00 for Climate Action Committee business for the 2022 
budget year. 

2. That Council approve an ongoing Climate Action Committee blog for communicating 
climate action and related information to the community, and monitored by the Climate 
Change Implementation Coordinator or other designated staff. 

 

12) NEXT MEETING 
 

April 6th, 7:00 pm, via Zoom 
 

13) ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 pm, on a motion by John Hoekstra. 
 



 

 

TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 
MINUTES 

Climate Action Committee (CAC) 
 

April 6th, 2022                                                                                                Virtual Meeting – Zoom@7pm 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Ian Anderson, Councillor Bryan Barker (Chair), Bob Clifford, Paul Darlaston, Chris 
Theijsmeijer  
REGRETS: John Hoekstra (technical issues) 
Staff: Todd Gordon (MPM, Recorder) 
Members of the Public: None 
Media: None 
 

1) OPEN 

The meeting was called to order at 7:03 pm. 
Moved by Paul Darlaston; Seconded by Ian Anderson. Carried. 

 

2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

The agenda for the April 6th, 2022, meeting was approved. 
Moved by Bob Clifford; Seconded by Chris Theijsmeijer. Carried. 

 

3) DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

None. 
 

4) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

The minutes for the March 23th, 2022, meeting were approved. 
Moved by Bob Clifford; Chris Theijsmeijer. Carried. 

 

5) DELEGATIONS 

None. 
 

6) OLD BUSINESS 
 

i. Spring (Earth Day) Event – Planning and Organizing 

The Earth Day event planning follow-up was the primary reason for the meeting and much 
was achieved with special topic speakers confirmed, as well as booths and topics. In addition, 
other details were discussed, including advertising. In general, event details were considered 
to be at the stage where one more meeting prior to the event should be sufficient. 

ii. Report to Committee Regarding Recommendations to Council 
 

The Chair confirmed that the recommendations made by the committee at the last meeting 
– those dealing with a suggested CAC budget allocation and the CAC blog - were accepted by 
Council. 



 

2 
 

 

7) NEW BUSINESS 

None 
 

8) CORRESPONDENCE 
 

None 
 

9) INFORMATION 
 

None 
 

10) CLOSED SESSION 
 

None 
 

11) RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

12) NEXT MEETING 
 

April 20th, 7:00 pm, via Zoom 
 

13) ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:37 pm, on a motion by Paul Darlaston. 
 



 

 

TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 
Economic Development Committee 

MINUTES 
March 9th, 2022, 7:00 pm                                                        Electronic Meeting (Zoom Meetings) 

PRESENT: Councillor Sharon Alkenbrack (Chair), Chris Dietrich, Suzanne Darlaston, Councillor Sharon Jackson,  
Staff: Todd Gordon, Municipal Project Manager (MPM) 

REGRETS: Diane Larocque, Tracey Paris 
Members of the Public: None 
 

1. Opening of Meeting  
Motion by Sharon Jackson; Second by Suzanne Darlaston: 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 pm. 
Carried. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Suzanne Darlaston; Second by Sharon Jackson: 
That the agenda for the March 9th, 2022 meeting be accepted as amended - Items added to Old Business, 
a) Ongoing EDC Initiatives iv) June Event, and; New Business b) Teeny Tiny Summit - Review 
Carried. 

 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest  
None 
 

4. Adoption of Minutes 
Motion by Suzanne Darlaston; Second by Sharon Jackson: 
That the minutes of the February 9th, 2022 meeting be accepted as presented. 
Carried. 

 

5. Delegations 
None 

 

6. Council Update Report 
Chair Alkenbrack provided a brief overview of the previous Council meeting (February 22nd, 2022), 
including the announced retirement of the CAO, outdoor rink cover project, delay in the CCIC position, 
and updated landfill hours. 

 

7. Financial Report 
The MPM reported that there was no formal financial report and that there had been no EDC-related 
expenditures since the December meeting. 

 

8. EDO Update 
The EDO provided an update on various municipal projects, including the Kagawong River Pedestrian 
Bridge, and the Rink Cover Project, and that the Zoning By-law Revision project was underway. 
 

9. Old Business 
 

a) Ongoing EDC initiatives 
I. Jabbawong Festival 

Discussion included the scope of the event this year – 1-day or 2. Given that the break in things 
represented by the pandemic, consensus was to keep it to 1-day for this year. Further 
discussion on dates, potential story-telling participants, the possibility of vendors, scheduling, 
advertising & promotion, and the potential economic benefits. The Chair also raised the 
possibility of “New Horizons” funding for the festival, but further information needs to be 



 

2 
 

gathered. 
 

II. Christmas in Kagawong 
The committee has embraced this event for 2022. Discussion included # of days/timing/scope 
 

III. Poetry/Art Boxes 
The Chair discussed her research/investigation regarding sourcing some new appropriate, 
robust boxes (receptacles for participants to deposit their poetry and/or art work). 
 

IV. June Event 
Suzanne Darlaston asked the committee to consider the possibility/appropriateness of a 
modest community event – perhaps an evening event – sometime in June. There was good 
discussion about potential themes and ideas, and the committee agreed to discuss it further at 
the April meeting. 

 
b) Municipal Marina Store – Angling Supplies - Discussion 

The MPM indicated he hadn’t yet had further follow-up with the marina manager on this topic, 
but was intending to do so and report back at the next meeting 

 
 
10. New Business 

a) EDC Budget 2022 
Given the discussion under Old Business c), above, the committee deferred final budget discussion to the 
next meeting. 

 
b) Teeny-Tiny Summit 
We were running short of time, but Suzanne Darlaston indicated that she did take this summit in – the 
final one of this series. The committee agreed to monitor for the post-summit follow-up, which normally 
includes a link to video of the summit sessions, and discuss as appropriate 
 

11. Correspondence 
None 

 

12. Information 
None 

 

13. Recommendations to Council 
None 

14. Next Meeting: April 13th, 2022 at 7:00 pm, Zoom Meetings 
 

15. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. on a motion by Chris Dietrich. 



 

 

TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 
Economic Development Committee 

MINUTES 
April 13th, 2022, 7:00 pm                                                        Electronic Meeting (Zoom Meetings) 

PRESENT: Councillor Sharon Alkenbrack (Chair), Councillor Sharon Jackson, Diane Larocque, Tracey Paris 
Staff: Todd Gordon, Municipal Project Manager (MPM) 

REGRETS: Chris Dietrich, Suzanne Darlaston (joined, but had technical issues, so had to leave the meeting early) 
Members of the Public: None 
 

1. Opening of Meeting  
Motion by Sharon Jackson; Second by Tracey Paris: 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. 
Carried. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Tracey Paris; Second by Suzanne Darlaston: 
That the agenda for the April 13th, 2022 meeting be accepted as presented. 
Carried. 

 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest  
None 
 

4. Adoption of Minutes 
Motion by Sharon Jackson; Second by Suzanne Darlaston: 
That the minutes of the March 9th, 2022 meeting be accepted as presented. 
Carried. 

 

5. Delegations 
None 

 

6. Council Update Report 
Chair Alkenbrack provided a brief overview of the previous council meeting (March 21st, 2022), including 
Council approval of poetry box expenditure, the announced retirement of the Public Works 
Superintendent, Floyd Becks, outdoor rink cover project, vote-by-mail option for the 2022 municipal 
election, early start to the Kagawong market, and the CAC Earth Day event. 

 

7. Financial Report 
The MPM reported that there was no formal financial report and that there had been no EDC-related 
expenditures since the December meeting. 

 

8. EDO Update 
The EDO provided an update on various municipal projects currently underway, or upcoming. 
 

9. Old Business 
 

a) Ongoing EDC initiatives 
I. Jabbawong Festival 

Discussion included the fact that there was a need to make a recommendation to Council for 
approval. Also - changing the date from 3rd Saturday to the 2nd Saturday (July 9th). Further 
discussion about speakers (story-tellers) and speaker honorariums, as well as approaching the 
Museum Committee about food service. Finally, discussion about advertising and promotion, 
with more to follow at the next meeting 
Motion by Diane Larocque, Seconded Tracy Paris: 



 

2 
 

That the EDC recommends Council approve the Billings Economic Development Committee 
hosting the Jabbawong Story Telling Festival on Saturday July 9th, 2022. 
Carried. 
 

II. Christmas in Kagawong 
The committee had further discussion about number of vendors, space and whether to have 
any food provision. Agreement to discuss further at subsequent meetings. 
 

III. Poetry/Art Boxes 
Poetry/art boxes have been purchased; Diane Larocque showed a sample. Further discussion 
and confirmation of installation locations. 
 

IV. June Event 
This item was deferred until the next meeting because technical issues forced Suzanne 
Darlaston to leave the meeting prematurely. 

 
10. New Business 

a) EDC Budget 2022 
The committee discussed anticipated revenues and expenditures for 2022, including those related to the 
initiatives outlined above under old business, for inclusion in the allocations considered by Council in the 
2022 budgeting process. 

 

11. Correspondence 
None 

 

12. Information 
None 

 

13. Recommendations to Council 
1. The EDC recommends that Council approve the Billings Economic Development Committee 

hosting the Jabbawong Story Telling Festival on Saturday July 9th, 2022. 
 

14. Next Meeting: May 11th, 2022 at 7:00 pm, Zoom Meetings 
 

15. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. on a motion by Tracey Paris. 



Township of Billings
Accounts Payable May 16 2022

Date Ck# Name Total Due
May 3 2022 7254 John's Flowershop 2,164.79$        
May 12 2022 7255 Berry Boats 239.48$           
May 12 2022 7256 Bridal Veil Variety 467.52$           
May 12 2022 7257 Canada Post Corporation 949.20$           
May 12 2022 7258 Grand & Toy 457.94$           
May 12 2022 7259 Larocque, Diane 317.31$           
May 16 2022 7260 Laurentian Business Products 133.55$           
May 12 2022 7261 Lisa/Darren Hayden 819.00$           
May 12 2022 7262 Local Authority Services 310.75$           
May 12 2022 7263 Manitoulin Planning Board 10,571.30$      
May 12 2022 7264 Manitoulin Veterinary Committee 202.41$           
May 12 2022 7265 Minister of Finance MTO 1,207.00$        
May 12 2022 7266 Municipality of Central Manitoulin 2,433.82$        
May 12 2022 7267 Public Health Sudbury & Districts 2,308.00$        
May 12 2022 7268 S.T.O.P. Restaurant Supply 107.95$           
May 12 2022 7269 Steele's Home Hardware 207.32$           
May 12 2022 7270 The Manitoulin Expositor 630.21$           
May 12 2022 7271 UCCM Castle Building Supplies 225.33$           

Total Cheques: 23,752.88$      

Pre-Authorized Payments
Name Total Due

May 1 2022 DD Sudbury Manitoulin DSAB 30,545.33$      
May 1 2022 DD GFL Environment 6,795.01$        
May 1 2022 DD Ontario Clean Water Agency 9,904.00$        
May 5 2022 DD Superior Propane 1,004.53$        
May 11 2022 DD BMO Master Card 5,578.40$        
May 16 2022 DD Payroll Deductions 14,330.12$      
May 16 2022 EFT Calhoun Super Structures 59,028.00$      
May 22 2022 DD Bell Canada 574.55$           
May 23 2022 DD Hydro One 7,034.62$        

Total Pre-Authorized Payments 68,157.39$      

Total Accounts Payable 91,910.27$      


